

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Citizens' Advisory Committee Wastewater Subcommittee

MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday, November 12, 2024 5:30 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. 525 Golden Gate Ave., 3rd Floor Tuolumne Conference Room

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY OBSERVE AND PARTICIPATE VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE SOFTWARE

Meeting URL

https://sfwater.zoom.us/j/84471696295?pwd=tLHw1IWkKktE68oEht2DpzFclOpuJN.1

Phone Dial-in 669.219.2599

Find your local number: https://sfwater.zoom.us/u/koINZGz3v

Meeting ID / Passcode 844 7169 6295 / 273048

Mission: The Wastewater Subcommittee shall review sewage and stormwater collection, treatment, and disposal system replacement, recycling, and other relevant plans, programs, and policies (<u>Admin. Code Article XV, Sections 5.140 - 5.142</u>).

Members

Amy Nagengast, Chair (D8)Maika Pinkston (M-Enviro.Andrea Baker (B-Small Business)Douglas Jacuzzi (D4)Org)Business)Moisés García (D9)Elizabeth Steele Teshara (D7)

D = District Supervisor appointed, M = Mayoral appointed, B = Board President appointed

Staff Liaisons: Lexus Moncrease and Lupita Garcia Staff Email for Public Comment: cac@sfwater.org

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Call to order and roll call at 5:44 pm.

Members Present at roll call: (4) Nagengast, Pinkston, Baker, Jacuzzi

Members Absent: (2) García, Steele Teshara

Public Comment: None

Kate H. Stacy

London N. Breed

President

Mayor

Joshua Arce Vice President

Avni Jamdar Commissioner

Steve Leveroni

Commissioner

Dennis J. Herrera General Manager



2. Approve September 10, 2024, Minutes

Motion was made (Baker) and was seconded (Jacuzzi) to approve the September 10, 2024, Minutes.

Members in attendance voted unanimously to approve the September 10, 2024 Minutes.

3. Report from the Chair

- Welcome members, staff, and the public
- San Francisco files final brief in SCOTUS case
- Public Memo re CCSF v. U.S.E.P.A.
- CCSF v. U.S.E.P.A. Oral Argument Audio
- <u>U.S. and California take Enforcement action against S.F. for Clean Water Violations</u>
- Chair Nagengast informed the Members that there are two litigation cases that the SFPUC is undertaking that pertain to wastewater. She further commented that considering it does involve sensitive information, a full presentation on the cases is not possible so to inform the Members and the public as to what is happening, the Chair's report will include pieces that can be shared. One of the high-profile cases went to the U.S. Supreme Court and was heard in October and it's between the City of San Francisco and the U.S Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). This is specifically regarding the Oceanside Treatment Plant and the discharge into the Pacific Ocean. The documents discuss how they are allowed to discharge sewage into the ocean. In the documents, there are a few clauses that expand on the arena of what the SFPUC is required to control and ultimately discusses the quality of water that is discharged from the pipe. When the sewage discharges into the Pacific Ocean, what does that concentration look like and the EPA states that the SFPUC and City are responsible for the quality of the Pacific Ocean which is separate than the concentration coming from the pipe. The SFPUC wants the EPA to be more specific with their provisions and the EPA is arguing that their provisions are the general guidelines. A decision from SCOTUS will probably happen around May or June 2025.

Public Comment: None

4. Public Comment: Members of the public may address the Committee on matters that are within the Committee's jurisdiction and are not on today's agenda (2 minutes per speaker)

Public Comment: None

- Discussion: <u>Wastewater CAC FY 2024-2025 Priorities</u>, Wastewater CAC Chair, Amy Nagengast
 - Resources
 - SFPUC CAC FY 22-23 Annual Report
 - Wastewater CAC FY22-23 Year in Review

Presentation

- WW CAC: By the Numbers
- FY 23-24 Key Resources
- WW CAC Priorities FY 23-24

- FY 23 24 Priority Topic Accountability
- FY 24-25 Priority Discussion
- WW AGM Priorities Discussion

Discussion:

 Member Pinkston asked whether the Wastewater CAC will hear about water level rising, especially around the Candlestick area and the environmental impacts it will have.

Chair Nagengast responded that the sea level rise was specifically in response to the Water Board or the State sea-level rise guidance and that the presentation was specifically about the SFPUC's responses to the guidance. She further commented that they were also presented with flood mapping and 100-year flood maps that relate to the sea level rise.

 Member Jacuzzi asked for clarification regarding the May 2024 meetings and how many topics were presented in May.

Chair Nagengast responded that one presentation may have been in March, and there were 3 presentations in the May meeting and that we can confirm.

• Member Jacuzzi commented that as a priority he would like to have green infrastructure listed and that this comes from the May 2024 meeting where Stormwater and Flood Resilience in Folsom Area was discussed and a personal conversation with an organization regarding the flooding in the area. He further commented that the SFPUC has a pipe plan for the area, however, it is unclear whether funding has been identified at this time and with the engineering plan, if timing works out, there can be a push for green infrastructure on the piping project for the area.

Chair Nagengast responded that we can ask the project team where they are or even review what could be a possibility.

Green Infrastructure was added to the Priority list for FY24-25.

Member Baker mentioned that Candlestick development just got approved and infrastructure will be a big point of discussion and is curious to learn more about the SFPUC infrastructure process and learning about how these projects impact the community and how are rate payers impacted due to the spending of these projects.

Chair Nagengast responded that there is a turnover process where developers need to build it to SFPUC's standards.

Member Jacuzzi commented that on small and mid-scale projects that he has been involved with outside of San Francisco as a developer, there are different methods for who it might get paid for and a lot of the times it is paid with a bond, they also use parcels that end up being paid by property taxes within the boundaries of development. He further commented Engineers do have to propose and there is some back and forth with the engineers, developers and municipality until an agreement is reached that meets standards. It is rare, but a general

assessment bond can pay for a private investment, but it must be passed by a Board or something similar.

• **Member Pinkston** commented that she has concerns over the new building considering the rise of sea-levels in that geographic area.

Member Baker added that they will need to build with the sea-level rise in mind because that will be a key topic of discussion for the foreseeable future.

 Member Pinkston asked about the quality of water in the area considering there are signs that state "Do not fish, do not crab", etc.

Member Jacuzzi commented that the interesting part of this is that Bay water quality is better than it was 8 years ago when sea grass would not grow. It's gotten better considering that there are only 2% of historic wetlands to help keep it clean.

Member Pinkston asked if there is the possibility of putting dams in the area considering that people will be leaving in the area.

Member Jacuzzi stated that this is why they are here and doing their part to move the needle in the direction that it needs to be to get better water quality.

 Member Jacuzzi commented that in relation to the Folsom flooding and sea-level rise, these go hand-in-hand because the Folsom area historically was a tidal marsh. Around Guerrero and 15th there was a boat dock, and all of these serve as interconnecting points west of Ocean Beach. What is the main infrastructure in place so that we live with this?

Chair Nagengast acknowledged the comment and emphasized that the main themes so far have been on infrastructure, nutrient removal and sewer flows and how it relates to sea-level rise.

Discharge Removal added to the Priority list for FY24-25, and beneath that lists "Sewer Overflows" as a subtopic for Priority number 2.

 Member Baker commented that they appreciate Assistant General Manager (AGM) Prather has listed his priorities for this year and asked if he shared his priorities from last year and what was accomplished? Were any of last year's priorities moved to this year?

Chair Nagengast responded that the Wastewater CAC took some of AGM Prather's priorities and made headway on those such as flooding, nutrient removal, and sea level rise.

 Member Baker pointed out that SFPUC staffing was not listed on the priorities and staffing has been an issue for the SFPUC for the past 5 years. **Chair Nagengast** agreed that this should be a priority, but it may have not been on the listed presentation and is even likely a further breakdown of the listed vacancies in the Wastewater Enterprise at the SFPUC to know what certain classifications are experiencing more vacancies.

Member Baker stated that the SFPUC is one of the largest agencies, if not the largest within the City and County so they would hire many people however, in District 10, that has a high unemployment rate, there are conversations about opportunities that may exist for these folks suggests to AGM Prather that action be taken for these individuals especially considering they deal with the environmental impacts of a Wastewater Treatment Facility in their community.

Chair Nagengast responded that she sees it as one level below and is interested to know what is considered a vacancy.

Member Baker commented when there is a 25% vacancy within the SFPUC, what kind of service are they provided. When compared to a small business, a 25% vacancy signifies there is a lot that is not getting done.

Member Jacuzzi further commented that 25% vacancy in one year means there is excess revenue that can go to a job training program.

Chair Nagengast suggested that this may not be a one-size fits all solution considering the type of job that would be training for whether a desk job or in the field.

 Chair Nagengast asked if there were any other priorities the group would like to share. There are two additional priorities from AGM Prather's list that may be added to the CAC Wastewater Priority list.

Member Baker asked if we did the two legal cases, would those be considered together or separate.

Chair Nagengast responded that the SFPUC is going to be limited in what it is allowed to share with the Wastewater CAC, and it will be up to members to learn and read what is going on. There can be an ask for presentations on the key facts that lead to the cases.

Member Jacuzzi mentioned that there could be the topics behind the permit and emergency trigger use that is by just reducing the amount of water that goes into the combined system. If we look at the numbers, it's the rainfall over a given period of time. It is not difficult to quantify how much green infrastructure is needed to eliminate the overflows all together, but we can push and write resolutions that ask for more infrastructure, so the systems do not overflow. With the pass of proposition K, the City has more leeway because the beach where the SFPUC discharges is eligible for federal aid.

 Chair Nagengast commented that the litigation could fit under the sewer flow priority and reminded that some of these priorities, like staffing will be discussed with the Full CAC but can also be tweaked to be discussed specifically within the Wastewater CAC like what is the status on stationary engineers, collection systems and Wastewater 1820 classification.

Member Baker commented that it would also be helpful to know what training programs the SFPUC has and what has been running and operating for the last 10 to 15 years and what the success rate has been.

 Chair Nagengast commented that for wording on the written priorities, it should read "Staffing and Vacancy Trends" to ultimately understand the 25% vacancy.

"Staffing and Vacancy Trends" added as priority number 3 on the Wastewater FY24-25 Priority list. Under Priority 3 lists four subtopic which include" What types of positions/fields are vacant? Why?"," Training & career programs", "Asset Management Team" and "Capital Project Transition & Operations".

Chair Nagengast stated to remove "Discharge removal" and "Discharge Stewardship" would be sufficient.

Discharge Removal on the Priority list was removed and updated to Discharge Stewardship.

Public Comment: None

6. Staff report

- Next Tuesday, there will be a full CAC where AGM Steve Ritchie will be presenting Water 101 and will be discussing the full CAC priorities.
- Next Wastewater CAC Committee meeting is in January 14, 2025.

Public Comment: None

7. Future Agenda Items and Resolutions

Adopted Resolutions for Follow Up

- Resolution in Support of SFPUC Class A Biosolids Local Distribution Program <u>adopted August 21, 2018</u>
- Resolution in Support of Cityworks Interns Recommendations adopted on November 21, 2017
- Resolution in Support of Equitable Green Infrastructure Implementation throughout the Southeast Sector of San Francisco and throughout the City <u>adopted on June 20, 2017</u>
- Resolution Urging SFPUC Commission to Initiate Planning and Environmental Review for Building a New Community Center at Third and Evans and to Direct Staff to Develop an Interim Greenhouse Environmental and Workforce Development Program adopted on October 18, 2016
- Resolution Supporting the SFPUC to Conduct Robust Community Engagement to Determine the Community's Preference for Remodeling Southeast Community Facility at 1800 Oakdale or Building a New Community Center at 1550 Evans adopted on January 19, 2016

Public Comment: None

8. Announcements/Comments Visit <u>www.sfpuc.org/cac</u> for final confirmation of the next meeting date.

Public Comment: None

9. Adjournment at 6:58 pm

For more information concerning the agendas, minutes, and meeting information, please visit www.sfwater.org/cac. For more information concerning the CAC, please contact by email at cac@sfwater.org or by calling (415) 517-8465.

Disability Access

The following services are available on request 48 hours prior to the meeting; except for Monday meetings, for which the deadline shall be 4:00 p.m. of the last business day of the preceding week: For American sign language interpreters or the use of a reader during a meeting, a sound enhancement system, and/or alternative formats of the agenda and minutes, please contact Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465 or our TTY at (415) 554-3488 to make arrangements for the accommodation. Late requests will be honored, if possible.

In order to assist the City's efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. Individuals with chemical sensitivity or related disabilities should call our accessibility hotline at (415) 554-6789.

LANGUAGE ACCESS

Per the Language Access Ordinance (Chapter 91 of the San Francisco Administrative Code), Chinese, Spanish and or Filipino (Tagalog) interpreters will be available upon requests. Meeting Minutes may be translated, if requested, after they have been adopted by the Committee. Assistance in additional languages may be honored whenever possible. To request assistance with these services please contact Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465, or cac@sfwater.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. Late requests will be honored if possible.

語言服務

根據三藩市行政法第91章"語言服務條例",中文、西班牙語和/或菲律賓語口譯服務在有人提出要求後會提供。翻譯版本的會議記錄可在委員會後要求提供。其他語言協助在可能的情況下也可提供。請於會議前至少48小時致電((415) 517-8465或電郵至 [cac@sfwater.org] Lexus Moncrease 提出口譯要求。逾期要求, 在可能狀況下會被考慮。

ACCESO A IDIOMAS

De acuerdo con la Ordenanza de Acceso a Idiomas "Language Access Ordinance" (Capítulo 91 del Código Administrativo de San Francisco "Chapter 91 of the San Francisco Administrative Code") intérpretes de chino, español y/o filipino (tagalo) estarán disponibles de ser requeridos. Los minutos podrán ser traducidos, de ser requeridos, luego de ser aprobados por la comité. La asistencia en idiomas adicionales se tomará en cuenta siempre que sea posible. Para solicitar asistencia con estos

servicios favor comunicarse con Lexus Moncrease al (415) 517-8465, o cac@sfwater.org por lo menos 48 horas antes de la reunión. Las solicitudes tardías serán consideradas de ser posible.

PAG-ACCESS SA WIKA

Ayon sa Language Access Ordinance (Chapter 91 ng San Francisco Administrative Code), maaaring mag-request ng mga tagapagsalin sa wikang Tsino, Espanyol, at/o Filipino (Tagalog). Kapag hiniling, ang mga kaganapan ng miting ay maaring isalin sa ibang wika matapos ito ay aprobahan ng komite. Maari din magkaroon ng tulong sa ibang wika. Sa mga ganitong uri ng kahilingan, mangyaring tumawag sa Lexus Moncrease at (415) 517-8465, o cac@sfwater.org sa hindi bababa sa 48 oras bago mag miting. Kung maari, ang mga late na hiling ay posibleng pagbibigyan.

Lobbyist Registration and Reporting Requirements

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code §2.100] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220 San Francisco, CA 94102, Phone: (415) 252-3100/Fax: (415) 252-3112, Email: ethics.commission@sfgov.org.

Know your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code)

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils, and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, by mail to Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 San Francisco, CA 94102-4683; by telephone 415-554-7724, by Fax 415-554-7854, or by email: sotf@sfgov.org

The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.